D.A.6-593

Wapp

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED
SID J. WHITE 2-12
JAN 19 1993

ELERK, DUPREME COURT

Chief Deputy Clerk

MOBIL OIL CORPORATION,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO: 80,310

JEREMY BRANSFORD,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FOURTH DISTRICT OF FLORIDA CASE NO: 91-2147

INITIAL BRIEF OF MOBIL OIL CORPORATION, PETITIONER

ROGER S. KOBERT, ESQ.
Florida Bar No: 765295
MARK A. COHEN & ASSOCIATES, P.A.
Capital Bank Building
1221 Brickell Avenue
Suite 1780
Miami, FL 33131
(305) 375-9292

January 18, 1993

THIS LEASE is made
a New York corporation, hereafter called Landlord, having an office at 6363. N.W., 6th Way, Suite. 390
Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33309 and
ALAN BERMAN
jointly and severally, if more than one, hereafter called Tenant, of 2333. S. Andrews Avenue, Ft. Lauderdale, F
1. Premises. Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tenant hereby hires and takes the following premises:
All of Lot 2, together with that portion of Lots 14, 15, 16, Block 128, Lauderdale
according to the plat thereof recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 9 of Public Records of
Dade County, Florida lying North of State Road and West of Anrews Avenue.
including the improvements and equipment now or hereafter placed thereon, listed on Schedule A attached hereto and made a part hereof, which Schedule may, from time to time, be amended to reflect additions and/or delctions (herein collectively called the premises), subject to any state of facts an accurate survey might show, to easements, encumbrances, covenants, restrictions, and reservations, if any, of record, existing or future mortgages or deeds of trust, and any underlying lease, and excluding any of the premises which are the subject of any other lease or grant by Landlord, its predecessors or assignors, and reserving to Landlord the right to use, or to grant others the right to use, a strip of the premises ten (10) feet wide along the perimeter thereon, for purposes of erecting and maintaining signs, with the right to install needed utilities for any signs so erected, and a right of access for vehicles and pedestrians for said purposes. Tenant shall not place signs, vehicles, or other structures within said ten (10) foot strip without the express written consent of Landlord.
2. Term. The term of this lease shall, except as provided in Paragraph 3, be for a fixed period of .three(.1) year(s) beginning September 1, 1987
3. Underlying Lease. Tenant has been notified in writing prior to the commencement of the term of this lease that (a) this lease and the estate herein created are subject to all the terms and conditions of any underlying lease held by landlord which underlying lease expires on the 30. day of . June
4. Rental. (a) Subject to the escalation provisions of Paragraph (b) of this Paragraph 4, Tenant shall pay rental without deduction, set off, notice, or demand, in accordance with the following schedule:
(1) From September 1 , 19.87 to August 31, , 19.88 the sum of: (i) \$ 1.793.00 per month gasoline profit center rental (GPC) with a collection rate of
(2) From September 1, 19.88 to August 31, 19.89 the sum of: (i) \$ 1.883.90 per month GPC rental with a collection rate of 1.95 cents per gallon, plus (ii) \$ 1.193.90 per month APC rental with a collection rate of 1.95 cents per gallon; such total of \$ 2.915.90 to be collected at the rate of 2.95 cents per gallon.
(3) From September 1 ,19 89 to August 31, ,19 .90 the sum of: (i) \$ 1,997.00 per month GPC rental with a collection rate of .2.0¢ cents per gallon, plus (ii) \$ 1,083.00 per month APC rental with a collection rate of .1.1¢ cents per gallon; such total of \$ 3,080.00 to be collected at the rate of .3.1¢ cents per gallon.
As used in this Paragraph 4, GPC refers to the rental for the use of the motor fuel facilities at the premises. As used in this Paragraph 4, APC refers to the rental for the use of the non-motor fuel facilities at the premises. As used in this Paragraph 4, the collection rate is the gallonage collection to be applied against each gallon of motor fuel delivered into the storage tanks at the premises. If in any month during the term of this lease there is a deficiency between the amount collected by the collection rate and the rental due for the month, Tenant shall pay such deficiency to Landlord not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of the following month. If in any month there is an overpayment, the overpayment will be refunded to Tenant or, at Landlord's option, applied to any account owing by Tenant to Landlord. The APC rent has been calculated on the use of the non-motor

fuel facilities by Tenant as of the effective date of this lease. Tenant shall not alter Tenant's business practices so as to add to or

change the current use upon which the APC rent is based without Landlord's prior written consent. In the event Landlord consents to such use, Landlord reserves the right to modify the APC rent. In the event Landlord and Tenant fail to agree on a revised APC rent within thirty (30) days of Landlord's request, Tenant shall, on notice from Landlord, either discontinue the added or changed use, or vacate the premises. If requested, Tenant shall provide and maintain with Landlord, a rental security deposit of one month's rent.

- (b) Landlord may, on sixty (60) days' prior written notice, increase the rent for either the GPC or the APC or both by not more than 20% each for any or all of the rental periods specified in Paragraph (a) above, effective with the commencement of the rental period as specified therein. If Landlord shall exercise this option, the collection rate will be adjusted accordingly.
- (c) Landlord and Tenant acknowledge and agree that all personal property and equipment listed on Schedule A, while subject to all terms and conditions of this lease, shall be considered as loaned equipment and, unless otherwise specified, no portion of the rental specified in this Paragraph 4 shall be allocated to such personal property and equipment. Maintenance, repairs, or replacement of such personal property and equipment shall not give rise to any claim for abatement of rent.
- (d) Landlord may, on written notice, immediately increase the total rent by the amount of any present of future governmental tax, fee, duty, or other imposition on, or measured by, the rental collected herein, unless Tenant is required by law to pay the same directly to the governmental taxing unit. If Landlord shall exercise this option, the collection rate will be adjusted accordingly.
- 5. Use of Premises Business Operations. Tenant acknowledges that Landlord has made a substantial investment in developing the premises as a retail gasoline facility; that Landlord has developed service stations throughout the country which are distinguished by design, trademark, decor, and graphics; that Landlord has built valuable goodwill throughout the country and has fostered confidence in the motoring public in service stations and products bearing Landlord's trademarks; that Landlord has advertised its products extensively throughout the country; and that the continued success of Landlord, and of Tenant as a Mobil dealer, as well as all other Mobil dealers, is dependent upon each Mobil dealer maintaining the highest standards of service station operation and customer service. Landlord and Tenant have entered into this lease with the express understanding that Tenant will use the premises principally for the operation of a gasoline facility offering petroleum and related products and services to the motoring public, and shall not use or permit to be used such premises in connection with any purpose prohibited by law, ordinance, covenant, condition, or restriction. Tenant agrees to exercise sound business practices in conducting his business and to use his good faith and best efforts to maximize the retail motor fuel business at said premises. Tenant shall not engage in any business conduct upon the premises, either by way of action or omission, which conduct could jeopardize or diminish the value of the premises and the business as a retail service station. Tenant further agrees to: (a) devote his major efforts to the operation of the service station and not devote more of Tenant's time to any other trade, occupation, or calling, or any combination thereof; (b) maintain adequate manpower levels; (c) render prompt, efficient, and courteous service to all customers, providing continued training, guidance, and supervision to employees to insure high standards of retailing and services; (d) maintain adequate inventory of quality products; (e) employ sound retailing practices including staying current and abreast of, and promptly reacting to, competitive conditions in Tenant's market area so as to maximize sale of motor fuel; (f) maintain current and accurate business records; (g) maintain the premises and the appearance thereof, together with the display of merchandise, in order to offer a pleasing and attractive facility to the public; (h) keep business hours based upon normal needs of trade customers as measured by traffic counts and/or hours maintained by comparable service stations in proximity to the premises unless all or a portion of the blank spaces are completed in the following schedule, in which event the schedule and not the business hours referred to above will control:
 - i) EMBRIZZZKANINOZZZIPINIZBR MIONIAWIKA SAKURIAKANK
 POMICZZZKKRIENDZZZZZPBŁON ŚRONIAKERUK
 INIKKYRIOTIORKIR PRHUKERĘŻZZKZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZZ EKURIZZZZKRIENDZZZZZZDON OR MODISYZIDEK ŚRONIAŁANIK
 EKURIZZZKRIENDZZZZZZZRIĘZ PRESENDIKYZZZDEK

(ii) 24 hours per day, .7.. days per week; and

(iii)

- 6. Maintenance Obligations Landlord. Landlord at its expense shall make repairs deemed necessary by it to keep improvements and equipment as are covered by this lease in good operating condition in accordance with the allocation of maintenance responsibilities set forth in Schedule B attached hereto and made part hereof, provided the necessity therefor is due to ordinary wear or to damage by the elements. Landlord's obligation to repair shall not arise until: (a) Landlord is notified by Tenant that the item in question is not in good operating condition, and (b) Landlord shall have determined in its sole discretion and within a reasonable period that the necessity for repair is due to a cause referred to above. Tenant shall either make the item harmless or shall not use it or permit it to be used until repaired. In lieu of repairing, Landlord may make replacements.
- 7. Maintenance Obligations Tenant. Tenant shall: (a) at its expense and in accordance with Schedule B hereof, maintain the premises in good safe, and operating condition and promptly make all repairs or replacements necessary for that purpose except to the extent Landlord shall make repairs as provided in Paragraph 6; (b) operate and maintain in accordance with the instructions of the equipment manufacturer and replace as necessary all emission control equipment and comply with all laws applicable thereto; (c) promptly notify Landlord of the need for maintenance program as prescribed in Schedule B; and (e) keep records of all preventative maintenance inspections and of all maintenance performed by Tenant and exhibit the records to Landlord upon request; (f) if requested, provide and maintain with landlord, a maintenance security deposit in such amount as Landlord may designate, which in no event shall exceed one thousand (\$1,000) dollars. Notwithstanding the division of maintenance responsibility between Landlord and Tenant set forth in Schedule B, Tenant agrees that Tenant is obligated to promptly repair or replace any item that requires same if the necessity therefor is not due to ordinary wear or to damage by the elements, or is due to damage by Tenant or an unidentified third party. Provided further, should Tenant fail to

promptly repair or replace any such item, Landlord may, at its option, effect said repair or replacement and the cost of such shall at Landlord's opton, be paid by Tenant to Landlord on demand, or as additional rent, or from Tenant's maintenance security deposit.

- 8. Appearance Obligations Tenant. Tenant shall keep the premises clean, orderly and well-lighted at all times. In eddition, Tenant shall: (a) immediately replace, in kind, all burned out light bulbs and light tubes; (b) keep adjacent sidewalks, curbs, and drives in good and safe condition and free from snow, standing water, oil, grease, other products, and obstructions; (c) maintain all landscaped areas, including but not limited to watering, weeding, trimming, cutting and other necessary care of all grass, gardens, shrubbery, trees or other plantings on the premises; (d) replace all grass, gardens, shrubbery, trees or other plantings which require replacement due to failure of proper maintenance by Tenant; (e) keep the rest rooms open at all times during business hours and keep such rest rooms clean, neat, sanitary, and supplied adequately with towels, toilet paper, and soap; (f) keep the drive areas clear of vehicles, other mobile equipment and obstructions which may restrict traffic flow, endanger customer safety or detract from appearance; (g) not use the premises for the sale of new or used vehicles, not retain disabled or unregistered vehicles on the premises for more than forty-eight (48) hours, and not park vehicles in areas other than those designated by Landlord for parking; (h) not place rental devices, coin-operated devices, dispensing devices, telephones, vehicles or equipment on the premises without Landlord's prior written consent, except that Tenant may, without such approval, install inside the service station building, storage, and merchandising equipment for beverages, candy and tobacco products if removable without damage to the premises; (i) not make or permit alterations or additions in the premises or place any additional structures on the premises without Landlord's prior written approval, except that Tenant may, without such approval, install storage and merchandising equipment for petroleum products, if removable without damage to the premises and if permissible under applicable law; (j) not display or affix to the exterior or interior of the building or anywhere on the premises, any signs, flags, posters, writings, markings, or pennants, without Landlord's approval, but Tenant shall have the right to display in a neat and orderly manner such briefly worded and professional appearing signs as are necessary to identify the products and services offered and their prices provided such does not obscure the visibility of Landlord's logos, trademarks, or Tenant's posted price of products, and provided further, such signs do not constitute hazard or nuisance for reasons of safety or visibility; and(k) not use or permit the use of service station bays, driveways, islands, or open areas of the premises for the display and sale of non-petroleum, or non-automotive related goods or services without the prior written consent of Landlord.
- 9. Other Obligations Tenant. Tenant agrees: (a) to supply and maintain all equipment necessary for Tenant's operations hereunder not supplied by Landlord as part of the premises; (b) to keep legible and visible all brand names. trademarks, and signs of Landlord on Landlord's pumps, containers, and equipment now or hereafter placed on the premises and to use such pumps, containers, and equipment, together with all Schedule A underground storage tanks, solely for Landlord's products; (c) to permit Landlord to enter the premises to make inspections and/or repairs, to post notices, to stick tanks, or for any other purpose without liability for any interference with Tenant's business; (d) to pay all utility charges and other expenses, except as may otherwise be provided in this lease, and all taxes and fees imposed on the premises or the use thereof, except real and personal property taxes on the land and buildings and on Landlord's equipment unless otherwise provided in any underlying lease between Landlord and Tenant; (e) to comply with all requirements of competent authorities with respect to the premises, sidewalks, drives, and curbs adjacent thereto, and of the National Fire Protection Association or the American Insurance Association and similar organizations; (f) not to maintain or permit any animal or condition on the premises which threatens the health, safety or well-being of customers; (g) not to permit loitering on the premises by persons who, at the time, have no proper business purposes thereon; (h) TO ACCEPT THE PREMISES AND SCHEDULE A EQUIPMENT IN THEIR PRESENT CONDITION, AS IS, WITHOUT ANY WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THEIR CONDITION OR FITNESS FOR ANY PURPOSE; (i) not to hold Landlord responsible for any defect in, or change in conditions affecting, the premises or for any damage to the premises except as provided in Paragraph 6; (j) to keep the premises free of all liens and claims; (k) to waive all present and future rights of redemption or repossession; (l) to waive any right in any appropriation, condemnation or eminent domain awards; (m) on any termination or expiration of this lease to surrender the premises to Landlord in good order and condition; (n) to monitor inventory of underground tanks daily by tank sticking or other industry accepted measurement techniques, and reconcile inventory records at least weekly in order to detect tank or piping leaks so as to safeguard the environment and prevent loss to either Tenant or Landlord; (o) to keep a daily log of all underground tank inventory readings which shall be available for inspection by Landlord, and to advise Landlord promptly of any indication of contamination or leakage; (p) not permit any consumption of intoxicating beverages or use of illegal drugs on the premises; (q) to keep filled and ready for operation all fire extinguishers on the premises; (r) not to permit the accumulation of trash, used tires, or other debris except such as shall be contained in proper trash receptacles; and (s) to comply with all the requirements of federal, state, and local authorities with respect to water, soil, and air pollution and waste disposal. If Tenant does not dispose of waste in a proper manner or is not, in Landlord's opinion, complying with said water, soil, and air pollution requirements, Landlord, at its option, may do so without liability to Tenant for business loss and the cost thereof shall be paid by Tenant, as additional rent.
- 10. Discontinuation of Product Storage Tanks. Landlord has leased and Tenant has taken the premises with underground storage tanks, as listed in Schedule A, of sufficient number so as to provide Tenant with the capability to market multiple products. Notwithstanding Landlord's obligations under Paragraph 6 of this lease agreement, in the event any one or more of such underground storage tanks shall require repair or replacement, Landlord may, at its option, elect not to repair or replace such tank and, in such event, Landlord shall either remove such tank, or evacuate and abandon such tank in place with no further use by Tenant and Schedule A shall be deemed amended to relect the deletion of such tank or tanks. Provided however, in the event Landlord exercises such option not to repair or replace, thereby reducing the number of underground storage tanks on the premises whereby Tenant's product number capability is reduced, Landlord shall thereupon reduce the GPC rental according to Landlord's then existing rental policy for the calculation of GPC rent based upon the reduced normal product volume resulting from the discontinued product. The volume of the discontinued product shall be based upon total deliveries of such discontinued product to Tenant during the twelve (12) month period immediately preceding the exercise of this option, or if Tenant has no twelve (12) month history of such purchases, such lesser time period as Tenant may have purchased the discontinued product. As a basis for this GPC rent recalculation, the product to be discontinued by Tenant at the premises shall be Tenant's lowest volume product during such period of time. In no event may this option be exercised by Landlord so as to eliminate Tenant's ability to market at least two (2) products. Any supply agreement between Landlord and Tenant shall be deemed amended so as to delete the sale and purchase of the discontinued product.

11. Indemnity, Notice, and Release. Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold Landlord, its agents, servants, employees, successors and assigns, harmless from and against any penalties, fines, charges, or expenses, for any violations of any law, regulation, order, or ordinance caused by any act or omission, whether negligent or otherwise of Tenant, or any of Tenant's agents or others under Tenant, or by Tenant's failure to notify Landlord of the need for repairs, or by Tenant's failure to otherwise comply with Paragraph 7 hereof, and from and against all liabilities, claims, actions, suits, liens, losses (including those of the parties, their agents and employees), for death, personal injury, property damage, or any other injury or claim arising out of the use, occupancy, operation, and maintenance of the premises (including adjacent sidewalks, drives, and curbs) by the Tenant or any of Tenant's agents, contractors, employees, or others under Tenant. Tenant shall promptly notify Landlord of the occurrence of any death, injury, or property damage, the circumstances regarding same, and the person or persons having knowledge of same, and thereafter cooperate with Landlord in its investigation involving any claim or suit based upon such occurrence.

Any claim by Tenant of any kind, based on or arising out of this lease or otherwise, shall be waived and barred unless Landlord is given notice within ninety (90) days after the event, action, or inaction to which such claim relates, and further, any such claim by Tenant shall be waived and barred unless asserted by the commencement of an action within twelve (12) months after the event, action, or inaction to which such claim relates. In no event shall Landlord be liable for prospective profits or special, indirect, or consequential damages. In consideration of Landlord's execution of this lease and the mutual covenants herein, Tenant expressly releases Landlord from any and all claims which Tenant may have against Landlord on the date of this lease, except only those claims if any, expressly reserved by Tenant in a schedule attached hereto.

The provisions of this Paragraph 11 shall survive any termination or nonrenewal of this lease, however arising.

12. Insurance. Tenant shall obtain, renew, and keep current during the term of this lease agreement insurance satisfactory to Landlord including, but not limited to, the following minimum insurance: (a) garagekeeper's legal liability insurance with limits of not less than \$50,000 with Landlord named as an additional insured (unless the configuration of the improvements of the premises is one having no service bays, in which event, garagekeeper's legal liability insurance is not required); (b) garage liability insurance including coverage for contractual liability and vehicles operated in the course of the Tenant's business with limits of not less than \$500,000 for any one occurrence, with Landlord named as an additional insured; (c) workers' compensation as required to insure Tenant's liability under either statutory or common law in Tenant's jurisdiction; (d) insurance sufficient to replace all plate glass and security glazing in the event of loss; (e) fire and extended coverage in an amount sufficient to cover Tenant's inventory and equipment with a waiver of subrogation against Landlord; and (f) fire legal liability. All policies shall be written by insurance companies authorized to do business within the state in which the service station leased by Tenant is situated. Tenant shall pay all premiums and assessments charged for such policies when due. Each such policy shall have a provision that requires that Landlord shall be afforded ten (10) days' written notice before any termination, cancellation, or material change shall become effective. In the event that any such policy is terminated or cancelled, Tenant shall promptly, prior to the expiration date of such policy, procure a new or substitute policy containing the same or additional coverage, such policy to afford coverage concurrent with the expiration of the cancelled or terminated policy. Certificates of insurance evidencing policies required hereunder shall be provided Landlord within sixty (60) days of the effective date of policy.

The failure of Tenant to: (a) obtain any of the above coverage; (b) pay all premiums and assessments when due; (c) comply with all terms and conditions of such policy, or the directions the insurance carrier or its rating bureau, or the National Fire Protection Association; (d) obtain new or substitutive policies as herein provided; or (e) provide Landlord with a certificate of insurance evidencing policies required, within sixty (60) days of the effective date of policy, shall be a default hereunder. If Tenant fails or refuses to obtain the above coverage, or otherwise defaults hereunder, Landlord, at its option, may obtain same, or otherwise cure said default at Tenant's sole cost and expense, and any expenses incurred by Landlord hereunder shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord as additional rent or, at Landlord's option, on demand.

- 13. Termination; Notice; Nonrenewal; Right of Termination due to Governmental Action; Accrued Rights; Remedies.
- (A) Termination of Lease and Relationship. Landlord may terminate or nonrenew this lease and the relationship between the parties, upon notice as provided herein, on any one or more of the following grounds:
- (1) failure by Tenant to comply with any provision of this lease, which provision is both reasonable and of material significance to the relationship hereunder;
 - (2) failure by Tenant to exert good faith efforts to carry out any of the provisions of this lease;
- (3) a determination is made by Landlord in good faith and in the normal course of business to withdraw from marketing of motor fuel through retail outlets in the relevant geographic market area in which the premises hereunder is located or
- (4) occurrence of an event which is relevant to the relationship hereunder and as a result of which termination or nonrenewal of this lease and the relationship is reasonable including, but not limited to, such events as: (a) failure of Tenant to make prompt payment of rent and additional rent when due; (b) the termination of any Retail Dealer Contract between the parties hereto; (c) if Tenant has made any false or misleading statement on Tenant's Dealer Application (Form CO-303); (d) Tenant commits any fraud or criminal misconduct, relevant to the operation of the premises; (e) Tenant takes advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors, or if an execution or levy shall issue against Tenant or Tenant's effects, or insolvency, bankruptcy, or receivership proceedings are instituted by or against Tenant which are not contested by Tenant and dismissed, or which result in a declaration of bankruptcy or judicial determination of insolvency of Tenant; (I) death of Tenant; (g) severe mental or physical disability of Tenant which continues for three (3) months or more and which prevents the personal supervision of the operation of the premises by Tenant; (h) expiration of any underlying lease of Landlord so that Landlord loses the right to grant Tenant possession of the premises; (i) a total or partial condemnation or other taking, in whole or in part, of the premises pursuant to the power of eminent domain; (j) destruction of all or a substantial part of the premises; (k) failure of tenant to operate the premises for the sale of motor fuel for seven (7) consecutive days or such lesser period which, under the facts and circumstances, constitutes an unreasonable period of time; (I) willful adulteration, mislabeling, or misbranding of motor fuels; (m) Tenant's misuse of Landlord's trademarks; (n) knowing failure of Tenant to comply with federal, state, or local laws, rules, regulations, or ordinances relevant to the operation of the premises; (o) conviction of Tenant of any felony involving moral turpitude; or (p) the occurrence of any other event relevant to the relationship between the parties which makes termination or nonrenewal reasonable, including but not limited to those set forth in (B) below.

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