07/

DA.5-5-93

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED 3-15

FEB 18 1993

SLERK, SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerk

MOBIL OIL CORPORATION,

Petitioner,

Case No.: 80,310

vs.

JEREMY BRANSFORD,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL FOURTH DISTRICT OF FLORIDA CASE NO.: 91-2147

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

MARK R. McCOLLEM, ESQUIRE Florida Bar No.: 370606 CHIDNESE & McCOLLEM 201 Southeast 12th Street Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33316 (305) 462-8484

February 17th, 1993

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

III. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THE 4TH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL CORRECTLY FOUND MOBIL TO BE RESPONSIBLE UNDER AN APPARENT AGENCY CLAIM GIVEN THE FACTUAL CIRCUMSTANCES OF THIS CASE.

The 4th District Court of Appeal found that MOBIL might be liable given the facts of this case under the theory of apparent agency for either failing to provide adequate security or failing to remedy a foreseeable danger.

Bransford v. Mobil, 601 So.2d 1306, 1307 (Fla. 4th DCA, 1992). The 4th District Court's decision in this regard does not represent a departure from the essential requirements of the law and is compatible with this Court's holding in Orlando Executive Park, Inc. v. Robbins, 433 So.2d 491 (Fla. 1983)

The Petitioner makes much ado about the fact that MOBIL, being an oil company, should be subject to a different standard than any other entrepreneur in the State of Florida. Surely MOBIL enjoys no special exceptions or exemptions from the law merely because it sells petroleum products rather than hotel services as did Howard Johnsons in the Robbins case. MOBIL can direct us to no viable rationale for carving out an exception in the law for oil companies other than its misplaced reliance upon Sydenham v. Santiago, 392 So.2d 357 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981), and this

CHIDNESE & McCollem

Court's discussion of <u>Sydenham</u> in the <u>Robbins</u> decision. As can be seen from a concise reading of <u>Robbins</u>, however, this Court believes that <u>Sydenham</u> and other oil company cases should be limited to their facts, and specifically disapproved of extending <u>Sydenham</u> into any other case. <u>Id</u> at 494. This Court in <u>Robbins</u> further illuminated the important reminder that "the existence of an agency relationship is ordinarily a question to by determined by a jury in accordance with the evidence produced at trial . . . "Id at 494.

This Court was further impressed with the fact that in Robbins, Howard Johnsons had apparently represented to the public that it could find a certain level of service at the motel, based upon the fact that the Howard Johnson's logo was present. Surely the same can be said for BRANSFORD with respect to the representations MOBIL made by its logos, uniforms, marquee and products at the station owned by it.

The <u>Robbins</u> decision seemed to create for the first time in Florida a cause of action for failure to provide adequate security. Petitioner's citation to <u>Cardounel v. Shell Oil Co.</u>, 397 So.2d 328 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1981), is therefore misplaced inasmuch as the negligent security claim brought within that case preceded this Court's Opinion in <u>Robbins</u>. Since <u>Robbins</u>, this Court has decided a veritable plethora of decisions which clearly lay to rest any precedential authority contained within <u>Cardounel</u>.

MOBIL'S reliance upon Robbins for the proposition that

one can never sustain an apparent agency claim against an oil company in the State of Florida represents an extremely myopic view of the logic contained within that decision. MOBIL's further attempt to bootstrap the District Court's language in Sydenham and this Court's citation to that case in Robbins as support for its argument that an oil company should enjoy exclusive immunity from suit under an apparent agency theory also represents a dangerous expansion of this Court's limiting language in Robbins.

The single most important distinction between the case judice and Sydenham is the fact that MOBIL owned the property upon which BERMAN ran this Mini Mart. Johnsons did not even own the property upon which the hotel in the Robbins case was operated, however, this Court found a mere presence of its national logo, uniformity of building design and color schemes sufficient to hold Howard Johnsons responsible under an apparent agency theory. Not only did MOBIL own the service station in this case, it also required that BERMAN use a Mobil marquee, sell Mobil products, display Mobil uniforms and further routinely provided on site directions and support for the day to day operation of the business located on its property. Respondent would argue that ownership by MOBIL of the property in question is sufficient distinction to avoid running aground upon the rocks of Sydenham. When considering the other participation MOBIL at the property in question, it becomes even more apparent that the 4th District was correct in holding that

MOBIL could be responsible for failure to provide adequate security and/or failure to remedy a foreseeable danger either on the property or with regard to the actions of BERMAN'S employee.

WHEREFORE, BRANSFORD requests that this Honorable Court affirm the decision of the 4th District Court of Appeal and remand this case back to the Trial Court for proceedings consistent with that Opinion.

V. CONCLUSION

The Fourth District Court of Appeal correctly found that MOBIL could be liable under an apparent agency doctrine given the facts of this case. Obviously this is a question that must be decided on a case-by-case basis and given the factual circumstances of MOBIL's involvement in the Mini Mart in question, the District Court was correct to find a jury issue on this point.